
   

 

 

ADA Coordinator: Gary P. Howayeck, Esq. 508‐324‐2650 
One Government Center – Fall River, MA 02722 

TEL 508‐324‐220 – FAX 508‐324‐2211 – EMAIL city_clerks@fallriverma.org 
 

BB..MM..CC..  DDUURRFFEEEE  HHIIGGHH  SSCCHHOOOOLL  ––  FFaallll  RRiivveerr,,  MMAA    

SSCCHHOOOOLL  BBUUIILLDDIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIITTTTEEEE  MMEEEETTIINNGG  NNOO..  1100  

Thursday, June 15, 2017           Durfee High School ‐ Library           4:30 PM 

  

AAggeennddaa                                   
 

1. Administrative Actions 
o Approval of May 11, 2017 Meeting Minutes 

 

2. Community Engagement 
o Review Public Forum No. 2 Presentation  
o Public Forum No. 2 – June 16, 2017 6:30 PM in Durfee HS Auditorium 
o Facebook, Twittter, Website Update 

 
3. Preferred Schematic Report (PSR) 

o Review Preferred Schematic Report Submission 
o Vote to Approve and Submit the Preferred Schematic Report Submission 

 
4. Schedule Update 

o Review Upcoming Project Schedule 
o Important Upcoming Milestone Dates 

 PSR Submission – June 29, 2017 
 

5. Budget Update 
o Review Total Project Budget 

 

6. Other Business/Discussions 
 

7. Next SBC Meeting 
o SBC Meeting           July 13, 2017        4:30 PM  Durfee HS Library 



 

     

       Page 1 of 3 

BMS Durfee High School – Fall River, MA                       MEETING MINUTES 

 

SCHOOL BUILDING COMMITTEE MEETING NO. 9  May 11, 2017

Location:  Durfee High School Library

Time: 4:30 PM
  

Attendees: 

Name  Assoc.  Present 

Jasiel F. Correia II  Mayor, City of Fall River  N 

Cathy Ann Viveiros  City of Fall River, City Administrator  N 

Rhonda Pinnell  City of Fall River, Purchasing Agent  N 

Tim McCoy  City of Fall River, Purchasing Agent FRHA  N 

Chris Gallagher  City of Fall River, Director of Building and Grounds  Y 

Carole Fiola  Mass. State Rep.  N 

Matt Malone  Fall River School Dept, Superintendent of Schools  Y 

Ken Pacheco  Fall River School Dept., Co‐Chair, Chief of Operations FRPS  Y 

Joseph Camara  City Councilor and Co‐Chair  N 

Mark Costa  Fall River School Dept. School Committee, Vice Chair  N 

Ed Costar  Fall River School Dept., School Committee  Y 

Maria Pontes  Fall River School Dept., Durfee High Principal  Y 

Melissa Fogarty  Fall River School Dept., Operations Durfee High  Y 

Michael Costa   Fall River School Dept., Teacher at Durfee High  Y 

Gary Bigelow  Fall River School Dept., Teacher at Durfee High  N 

Nick Christ  Baycoast Bank, CEO Baycoast Bank  Y 

Michael Keane  Civitech Architects, Owner  N 

Brantley Hunsinger  B‐Tech Construction, Owner  N 

Tammy Moutinho  Buildings and Grounds, Admin.  Y 

Lauren Correa  Student  Y 

Catarina Pereira  Student  N 

Jensen Riley  Student  N 

     

Scott Dunlap  Ai3, Project Architect  N 

Troy Randall  Ai3, Project Architect  Y 

Craig Olsen  Ai3, Project Architect  Y 

Sally Cameron  ThreeC Strategy  N 

     

Jim Rogers  LeftField, Owner  N 

Lynn Stapleton  LeftField, Project Executive   

Adam Keane  LeftField, Project Manager  Y 

Paul Gransaull  LeftField, Project Manager  Y 

 Voting Members indicated in bold 



BMC Durfee High School – School Building Committee Meeting No. 9 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

     

Page 2 of 3 

 

 
The School Building Committee Acting‐Chair, M. Pontes, called the meeting to order at 4:45 PM. 

 
I. Approval of Meeting Minutes 

 
1. The following motion and vote were made: 

 
  MOTION:  M.  Pontes moved,  seconded  by  C. Gallagher,  that  the Durfee  School Building 

Committee approve the April 13th 2017 SBC Meeting Minutes. 
  Discussion: None. 
 

The  Durfee  School  Building  Committee  voted  to  approve  the  April  13th  2017  SBC Meeting 
Minutes.  
For: 8 – Oppose: 0 – Abstained: 0 
 

II. Preferred Schematic Report (PSR) 
 
2. A. Keane  reviewed  the attachment  to  the  current meeting packet  regarding  the PSR Table of 

Contents and Responsibilities. 
 
3. T.  Randall  and  C.  Olsen with  the  aid  of  a  PowerPoint  presentation  (copy  attached  to  these 

minutes) walked  the  committee  through  a  series  of  options  for  siting  and  design  of  a  new 
school. Four options,  indicated as 1A, 1B, 1C and 1D, were presented and  showed a  range of 
Renovations  and  Additions  and  New  Construction.    Two  options,  2A  and  2B,  for  New 
Construction were further examined.  After much discussion, the SBC requested Ai3 to develop a 
hybrid option  incorporating options 1C and 2B.   T. Randall explained the pros and cons of this 
approach but agreed to develop the hybrid option as discussed.  

 
III. Community Engagement  

 
4. A. Keane noted  the  first Public Forum held on May 3, 2017  in  the Durfee HS Auditorium was 

attended by 45  ‐50 members of  the Community and was well received with positive  feedback 
from  the  attendees.  The  SBC  offered  many  positive  comments  for  the  portion  of  the 
presentation conducted by T.  Randall.  A date for the second Public Forum will be scheduled on 
or before the next SBC meeting. 

 
5. A.  Keane  confirmed  that  the  Project  Website  is  up  and  running  with  all  SBC  minutes, 

announcements and MSBA Submissions posted.  Facebook and Twitter accounts are also up and 
active. 

 
IV. Schedule Update 

 
6. Schedule Update – A. Keane noted  the PSR Milestone Dates had been added  to  the Schedule 

and is included in the current meeting packet. 
 

7.  The next SBC Meeting date was changed to be June 15, 2017. 
 



BMC Durfee High School – School Building Committee Meeting No. 9 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

     

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
V. Project Funding & Project Budget Update 

 
8. The percentage of the Feasibility Study Budget expended to date is 43%. 

 
VI. Other Business/Discussion 

 
9. None. 

 
VII. Next Meetings 

 
10. The next meeting of the full SBC is scheduled for June 15, 2017 at 4:30 PM in the Durfee  
  High School Library.  

 
VIII. Adjournment 

 
11. The following motion and vote were made: 

 
MOTION:  K. Pacheco moved and M. Pontes seconded, that the School Building Committee 
vote to adjourn the meeting at 6:10 PM. 
 
The Durfee School Building Committee voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting at 6:10pm. 
For: 8 – Oppose: 0 – Abstained: 0 
 
 

 
These meeting minutes represent what is presumed to be a complete and accurate account of the items 
reviewed,  discussed,  directions  given  and  conclusions  drawn  unless  notification  to  the  contrary  is 
received by  the next  regular construction meeting.    If no notification  is  received,  these minutes will be 
deemed an accurate account of the meeting.         

 
Prepared by, 
Paul Gransaull 
LeftField LLC 



S
ch

oo
l B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g

H
I

G
H

 
S

C
H

O
O

L

BMC D
U

R
F

E
E

M
ay

 1
1,

 2
01

7



R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
 &

 N
ew

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

H
I

G
H

 
S

C
H

O
O

L

BMC D
U

R
F

E
E

S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 O
pt

io
ns

O
P

T
IO

N
 1

A
O

P
T

IO
N

 1
B

O
P

T
IO

N
 1

C
O

P
T

IO
N

 1
D

O
P

T
IO

N
 2

A
O

P
T

IO
N

 2
B

N
ew

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

N
ew

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 –

-
C

o
re

 A
ca

d
em

ic
 B

u
ild

in
g

(N
ew

 O
ve

rl
ap

s 
Ex

is
ti

n
g)

 

R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
–

P
er

fo
rm

in
g 

A
rt

s 
B

u
ild

in
g 

   
  

(s
ta

n
d

 a
lo

n
e 

b
u

ild
in

g)

A
th

le
ti

c 
B

u
ild

in
g

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
o

f
A

th
le

ti
c 

fi
el

d
s

N
ew

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 –

-
C

o
re

 A
ca

d
em

ic
 B

u
ild

in
g

R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
–

P
er

fo
rm

in
g 

A
rt

s 
B

u
ild

in
g 

   
  

(s
ta

n
d

 a
lo

n
e 

b
u

ild
in

g)

A
th

le
ti

c 
B

u
ild

in
g

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
o

f
A

th
le

ti
c 

fi
el

d
s

N
ew

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 –

-
C

o
re

 A
ca

d
em

ic
 B

u
ild

in
g

R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
–

P
er

fo
rm

in
g 

A
rt

s 
B

u
ild

in
g 

   
  

(s
ta

n
d

 a
lo

n
e 

b
u

ild
in

g)

A
th

le
ti

c 
B

u
ild

in
g

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
o

f
A

th
le

ti
c 

fi
el

d
s

N
ew

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 –

-
C

o
re

 A
ca

d
em

ic
 B

u
ild

in
g

(N
ew

 O
ve

rl
ap

s 
Ex

is
ti

n
g)

 

R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
–

P
er

fo
rm

in
g 

A
rt

s 
B

u
ild

in
g 

   
  

A
th

le
ti

c 
B

u
ild

in
g

P
h

as
ed

 O
cc

u
p

ie
d

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
D

is
ru

p
ti

o
n

Lo
n

ge
r 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 T
im

el
in

e

N
ew

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 –

-
Si

n
gl

e 
B

u
ild

in
g

1
0

0
%

 r
ec

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 o

f 
si

te
 

am
en

it
ie

s 
/ 

p
la

yf
ie

ld
s 

/ 

p
ar

ki
n

g 
an

d
 c

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

.

N
ew

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 –

-
Si

n
gl

e 
B

u
ild

in
g

-
C

re
at

iv
e 

u
se

 o
f 

P
re

-

Fa
b

ri
ca

te
d

 b
u

ild
in

g 

to
 r

ed
u

ce
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

co
st

s.
 (

lo
n

g 
sp

an
 s

p
ac

es
)

R
e-

u
se

 o
f 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
st

ad
iu

m
 

an
d

 p
la

yf
ie

ld
s,

 p
ar

ki
n

g 

ar
ea

s.



H
I

G
H

 
S

C
H

O
O

L

BMC D
U

R
F

E
E

O
P

T
IO

N
 1

A
P

ro
s:

•
O

p
en

 E
n

tr
y 

P
la

za
.

•
Ex

is
ti

n
g 

p
ar

ki
n

g 
an

d
 c

ir
cu

la
to

ry
 s

tr
ee

ts
 m

ai
n

ta
in

ed
•

Te
n

n
is

 c
o

u
rt

s 
an

d
 n

o
rt

h
ea

st
 f

ie
ld

 m
ai

n
ta

in
ed

P
ar

ki
n

g 
w

el
l d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 a
m

o
n

g 
b

u
ild

in
gs

 &
 f

ie
ld

s.
•

Se
p

ar
at

ed
 b

u
s,

 p
ar

en
t 

an
d

 f
ac

u
lt

y 
si

te
 c

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

.
•

La
rg

es
t 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
o

ve
ra

ll 
G

SF
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt
 o

f 
re

n
o

va
ti

n
g 

th
e 

at
h

le
ti

c 
an

d
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ar

ts
 

b
u

ild
in

gs
.

•
R

en
o

va
te

s 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

au
d

it
o

ri
u

m
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ge
 a

t 
cu

rr
en

t 
si

ze
.

C
o

n
s:

•
N

ew
 c

o
re

 a
ca

d
em

ic
 b

u
ild

in
g 

o
ve

rl
ap

s 
a 

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

b
u

ild
in

g.
 

•
P

h
as

ed
 O

cc
u

p
ie

d
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

n
ew

 c
o

re
 

ac
ad

em
ic

 b
u

ild
in

g 
(i

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 r

en
o

va
ti

o
n

 o
f 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
at

h
le

ti
c 

&
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ar

ts
 b

u
ild

in
gs

).
•

G
re

at
er

 d
is

ru
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

tu
d

en
ts

, f
ac

u
lt

y 
an

d
 s

ta
ff

.
•

M
ay

 r
eq

u
ir

e 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 m

o
d

u
la

r 
b

u
ild

in
gs

.
•

Lo
n

ge
r 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 d

u
ra

ti
o

n
.

•
M

o
re

 e
xp

en
si

ve
.

•
C

u
rb

 a
p

p
ea

l –
p

ar
ki

n
g 

al
o

n
g 

El
sb

re
e 

St
re

et
 n

o
t 

id
ea

l.
•

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

st
ad

iu
m

 a
n

d
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

fi
el

d
 

re
q

u
ir

ed
.

•
St

ad
iu

m
 (

lig
h

ti
n

g)
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
ed

 c
lo

se
r 

to
 a

d
ja

ce
n

t 
n

ei
gh

b
o

rh
o

o
d

.
•

A
th

le
ti

c 
b

u
ild

in
g 

fu
rt

h
er

 a
w

ay
 f

ro
m

 s
ta

d
iu

m
 t

h
an

 
cu

rr
en

t 
re

la
ti

o
n

sh
ip

.
•

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n

 a
cc

es
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 n

ew
 b

u
ild

in
g/

at
h

le
ti

c 
b

u
ild

in
g 

an
d

 t
h

e 
p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ar

ts
 b

u
ild

in
g.

•
St

ee
p

 s
lo

p
e 

(A
D

A
 a

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

)
•

O
u

td
o

o
r 

ex
p

o
su

re
•

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

a 
p

la
yf

ie
ld

 in
 t

h
e 

o
p

en
 s

p
ac

e 
ad

ja
ce

n
t 

to
 E

le
m

en
ta

ry
 S

ch
o

o
l w

ill
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

a 
si

gn
if

ic
an

t 
re

ta
in

in
g 

w
al

l d
u

e 
to

 t
h

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

sl
o

p
e 

an
d

 g
ra

d
e 

ch
an

ge
.

N
ew

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

P
er

fo
rm

in
g

A
rt

s

B
ui

ld
in

g

A
th

le
tic

B
ui

ld
in

g

F
oo

tb
al

l

S
ta

di
um

P
ra

ct
ic

e

T
ur

fF
ie

ld

B
as

eb
al

l

E
xi

st
in

g

T
en

ni
s

C
ou

rt
s

P
ar

ki
ng

E
nt

ry

P
la

za

S
tu

de
nt

P
la

za

C
V

T
E

Lo
ad

in
g/

R
ec

ei
vi

ng

P
ar

ki
ng

A
m

ph
ith

ea
te

r

S
of

tb
al

l

S
oc

ce
r

B
us

 D
ro

p

V
eh

ic
le

D
ro

p

R
ay

 S
tr

ee
t

WeetamoeStreet

President Ave

StanleyStreet

Langley Street

N
or

th
 A

rr
ow

Ja
m

es
 T

an
se

y

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

S
ch

oo
l

S
pe

nc
er

 B
or

de
n

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

S
ch

oo
l

D
ris

co
ll

A
re

na

R
E
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
&

N
E
W

C
O

N
S
T
R

U
C

T
IO

N



H
I

G
H

 
S

C
H

O
O

L

BMC D
U

R
F

E
E

P
ro

s:
•

O
p

en
 E

n
tr

y 
P

la
za

.
•

La
rg

es
t 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
o

ve
ra

ll 
G

SF
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt
 o

f 
re

n
o

va
ti

n
g 

th
e 

at
h

le
ti

c 
an

d
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ar

ts
 

b
u

ild
in

gs
.

•
R

en
o

va
te

s 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

au
d

it
o

ri
u

m
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ge
 a

t 
cu

rr
en

t 
si

ze
.

•
P

ar
ti

al
ly

 m
ai

n
ta

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

p
ar

ki
n

g 
an

d
 c

ir
cu

la
to

ry
 

st
re

et
s.

•
P

ar
ki

n
g 

w
el

l d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 a

m
o

n
g 

b
u

ild
in

gs
 a

n
d

 
fi

el
d

s.
•

Se
p

ar
at

ed
 b

u
s,

 p
ar

en
t 

an
d

 f
ac

u
lt

y 
si

te
 c

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

•
N

ew
 b

u
ild

in
g 

n
o

t 
o

ve
rl

ap
p

in
g 

th
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
b

u
ild

in
g.

C
o

n
s:

•
P

h
as

ed
 O

cc
u

p
ie

d
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

n
ew

 c
o

re
 

ac
ad

em
ic

 b
u

ild
in

g 
(i

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 r

en
o

va
ti

o
n

 o
f 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
at

h
le

ti
c 

&
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ar

ts
 b

u
ild

in
gs

).
•

G
re

at
er

 d
is

ru
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

tu
d

en
ts

, f
ac

u
lt

y 
an

d
 s

ta
ff

.
•

M
ay

 r
eq

u
ir

e 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 m

o
d

u
la

r 
b

u
ild

in
gs

.
•

Lo
n

ge
r 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 d

u
ra

ti
o

n
.

•
M

o
re

 e
xp

en
si

ve
.

•
C

u
rb

 a
p

p
ea

l –
p

ar
ki

n
g 

al
o

n
g 

El
sb

re
e 

St
re

et
 n

o
t 

id
ea

l.
•

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

st
ad

iu
m

 a
n

d
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

fi
el

d
.

•
St

ad
iu

m
 (

lig
h

ti
n

g)
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
ed

 c
lo

se
r 

to
 a

d
ja

ce
n

t 
n

ei
gh

b
o

rh
o

o
d

.
•

A
th

le
ti

c 
b

u
ild

in
g 

fu
rt

h
er

 a
w

ay
 f

ro
m

 s
ta

d
iu

m
 t

h
an

 
cu

rr
en

t 
re

la
ti

o
n

sh
ip

.
•

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n

 a
cc

es
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 n

ew
 b

u
ild

in
g/

at
h

le
ti

c 
b

u
ild

in
g 

an
d

 t
h

e 
p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ar

ts
 b

u
ild

in
g.

•
St

ee
p

 s
lo

p
e 

(A
D

A
 a

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

)
•

O
u

td
o

o
r 

ex
p

o
su

re
•

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

a 
p

la
yf

ie
ld

 in
 t

h
e 

o
p

en
 s

p
ac

e 
ad

ja
ce

n
t 

to
 E

le
m

en
ta

ry
 S

ch
o

o
l w

ill
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

a 
si

gn
if

ic
an

t 
re

ta
in

in
g 

w
al

l d
u

e 
to

 t
h

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

sl
o

p
e 

an
d

 g
ra

d
e 

ch
an

ge
.

O
P

T
IO

N
 1

B
R

E
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
&

N
E
W

C
O

N
S
T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

N
ew

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

P
er

fo
rm

in
g

A
rt

s

B
ui

ld
in

g

A
th

le
tic

B
ui

ld
in

g

F
oo

tb
al

l

S
ta

di
um

P
ra

ct
ic

e

T
ur

fF
ie

ld

B
as

eb
al

l

T
en

ni
s

C
ou

rt
s

P
ar

ki
ng

E
nt

ry

P
la

za

S
tu

de
nt

P
la

za

C
V

T
E

Lo
ad

in
g/

R
ec

ei
vi

ng

P
ar

ki
ng

A
m

ph
ith

ea
te

r

S
of

tb
al

l

S
oc

ce
r

B
us

 D
ro

p

V
eh

ic
le

D
ro

p

R
ay

 S
tr

ee
t

WeetamoeStreet

President Ave

StanleyStreet

Langley Street

N
or

th
 A

rr
ow

Ja
m

es
 T

an
se

y

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

S
ch

oo
l

S
pe

nc
er

 B
or

de
n

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

S
ch

oo
l

D
ris

co
ll

A
re

na



H
I

G
H

 
S

C
H

O
O

L

BMC D
U

R
F

E
E

P
ro

s:
•

M
o

st
 c

o
st

-e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 o

p
ti

o
n

 (
Si

m
ila

r 
to

 O
p

ti
o

n
 2

B
).

•
C

u
rb

 A
p

p
ea

l: 
N

ew
 a

ca
d

em
ic

 c
o

re
 b

u
ild

in
g 

d
ir

ec
tl

y 
o

ff
 E

ls
b

re
e 

St
re

et
.

•
La

rg
es

t 
am

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g 
sq

u
ar

e 
fo

o
ta

ge
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt
 o

f 
re

n
o

va
ti

n
g 

th
e 

at
h

le
ti

c 
an

d
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ar

ts
 b

u
ild

in
gs

.
•

R
en

o
va

te
s 

th
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
au

d
it

o
ri

u
m

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ge

 a
t 

cu
rr

en
t 

si
ze

.
•

Ex
is

ti
n

g 
st

ad
iu

m
 a

n
d

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
tu

rf
 f

ie
ld

 r
em

ai
n

s 
u

n
d

is
tu

rb
ed

 in
 s

am
e 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
.

•
Se

p
ar

at
es

 b
u

s 
&

 v
eh

ic
u

la
r 

ci
rc

u
la

ti
o

n
.

•
M

in
im

al
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 d

is
ru

p
ti

o
n

 a
m

o
n

g 
re

n
o

va
ti

o
n

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

(r
en

o
va

ti
o

n
 o

f 
at

h
le

ti
c 

&
 

p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

ar
ts

 b
u

ild
in

gs
).

•
N

o
 b

u
ild

in
g 

o
ve

rl
ap

 (
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 b

u
ild

in
g 

an
d

 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

b
u

ild
in

g)
 .

•
P

ar
ti

al
ly

 m
ai

n
ta

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

p
ar

ki
n

g 
an

d
 c

ir
cu

la
to

ry
 

st
re

et
s.

C
o

n
s:

•
C

o
re

 a
ca

d
em

ic
 b

u
ild

in
g 

an
d

 a
th

le
ti

c 
b

u
ild

in
g 

p
h

ys
ic

al
ly

 s
ep

ar
at

ed
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ar

ts
 

b
u

ild
in

g.
•

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
ar

ki
n

g 
n

o
t 

id
ea

l.
•

Q
u

an
ti

ty
 o

f 
p

ar
ki

n
g 

n
ea

r 
n

ew
 c

o
re

 a
ca

d
em

ic
 

b
u

ild
in

g 
re

d
u

ce
d

. 
•

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n

 a
cc

es
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 n

ew
 b

u
ild

in
g/

at
h

le
ti

c 
b

u
ild

in
g 

an
d

 t
h

e 
p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ar

ts
 b

u
ild

in
g.

•
St

ee
p

 s
lo

p
e 

(A
D

A
 a

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

)
•

O
u

td
o

o
r 

ex
p

o
su

re

O
P

T
IO

N
 1

C
R

E
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
&

N
E
W

C
O

N
S
T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

N
ew

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

P
er

fo
rm

in
g

A
rt

s

B
ui

ld
in

g

A
th

le
tic

B
ui

ld
in

g

F
oo

tb
al

l

S
ta

di
um

P
ra

ct
ic

e

T
ur

fF
ie

ld

B
as

eb
al

l

T
en

ni
s

C
ou

rt
s

P
ar

ki
ng

E
nt

ry

P
la

za

S
oc

ce
r

Lo
ad

in
g/

R
ec

ei
vi

ng

P
ar

ki
ng

A
m

ph
ith

ea
te

r

S
of

tb
al

l

S
of

tb
al

l
B

us
 D

ro
p

V
eh

ic
le

D
ro

p

R
ay

 S
tr

ee
t

WeetamoeStreet

President Ave

StanleyStreet

Langley Street

N
or

th
 A

rr
ow

Ja
m

es
 T

an
se

y

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

S
ch

oo
l

S
pe

nc
er

 B
or

de
n

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

S
ch

oo
l

D
ris

co
ll

A
re

na



H
I

G
H

 
S

C
H

O
O

L

BMC D
U

R
F

E
E

P
ro

s:
•

N
ew

 b
u

ild
in

g 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

 c
o

n
n

ec
ts

 e
xi

st
in

g 
at

h
le

ti
c 

an
d

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

ar
ts

 b
u

ild
in

gs
.

•
En

tr
y 

P
la

za
 c

re
at

es
 s

ep
ar

at
io

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

H
ig

h
 S

ch
o

o
l b

u
ild

in
g 

an
d

 S
p

en
ce

r 
B

o
rd

en
 

El
em

en
ta

ry
.

•
V

ie
w

s 
ac

ro
ss

 s
it

e 
an

d
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
ad

iu
m

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

n
ew

 c
o

re
 a

ca
d

em
ic

 b
u

ild
in

g.
•

Le
as

t 
d

is
ru

p
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

p
la

yf
ie

ld
s 

an
d

 
at

h
le

ti
c 

st
ad

iu
m

.

C
o

n
s:

•
M

o
st

 e
xp

en
si

ve
 o

p
ti

o
n

.
•

M
o

st
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
ly

 d
is

ru
p

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
.

•
P

h
as

ed
 O

cc
u

p
ie

d
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

n
ew

 a
ca

d
em

ic
 

b
u

ild
in

g 
(i

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 r

en
o

va
ti

o
n

 o
f 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
at

h
le

ti
c 

&
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ar

ts
 b

u
ild

in
gs

).
•

G
re

at
er

 d
is

ru
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

tu
d

en
ts

, f
ac

u
lt

y 
an

d
 s

ta
ff

.
•

R
eq

u
ir

es
 t

em
p

o
ra

ry
 m

o
d

u
la

r 
b

u
ild

in
gs

.
•

Si
gn

if
ic

an
tl

y 
lo

n
ge

r 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
d

u
ra

ti
o

n
.

•
M

o
re

 e
xp

en
si

ve
.

•
M

o
re

si
te

 r
el

at
ed

 s
u

b
-s

u
rf

ac
e 

u
n

kn
o

w
n

s.
•

P
o

o
r 

cu
rb

 a
p

p
ea

l f
ro

m
 E

ls
b

re
e 

St
re

et
.

O
P

T
IO

N
 1

D
R

E
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
&

N
E
W

C
O

N
S
T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

N
ew

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

P
er

fo
rm

in
g

A
rt

s

B
ui

ld
in

g

A
th

le
tic

B
ui

ld
in

g

F
oo

tb
al

l

S
ta

di
um

P
ra

ct
ic

e

T
ur

fF
ie

ld

B
as

eb
al

l

T
en

ni
s

C
ou

rt
s

P
ar

ki
ng

E
nt

ry

P
la

za

S
oc

ce
r

Lo
ad

in
g/

R
ec

ei
vi

ng

P
ar

ki
ng

A
m

ph
ith

ea
te

r

S
of

tb
al

l

S
of

tb
al

l

B
us

 D
ro

p

V
eh

ic
le

D
ro

p

R
ay

 S
tr

ee
t

WeetamoeStreet

President Ave

StanleyStreet

Langley Street

N
or

th
 A

rr
ow

Ja
m

es
 T

an
se

y

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

S
ch

oo
l

S
pe

nc
er

 B
or

de
n

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

S
ch

oo
l

D
ris

co
ll

A
re

na

P
ar

ki
ng

B
as

eb
al

l



H
I

G
H

 
S

C
H

O
O

L

BMC D
U

R
F

E
E

P
ro

s:
•

Ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 o

f 
th

e 
b

u
ild

in
g 

la
yo

u
t 

an
d

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 

(a
ll 

p
ro

gr
am

s 
co

n
ta

in
ed

 w
it

h
in

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
b

u
ild

in
g)

.
•

C
u

rb
 A

p
p

ea
l: 

N
ew

 b
u

ild
in

g 
d

ir
ec

tl
y 

o
ff

 E
ls

b
re

e 
St

re
et

.
•

Le
as

t 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 d
is

ru
p

ti
o

n
 r

es
u

lt
in

g 
fr

o
m

 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 p
ro

je
ct

.
•

Id
ea

l b
u

s,
 p

ar
en

t 
an

d
 f

ac
u

lt
y 

si
te

 c
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
.

•
N

o
 b

u
ild

in
g 

o
ve

rl
ap

 (
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 a

n
d

 e
xi

st
in

g 
b

u
ild

in
gs

).

C
o

n
s:

•
M

o
st

 e
xp

en
si

ve
 o

p
ti

o
n

.
•

Sm
al

le
r 

au
d

it
o

ri
u

m
 t

h
an

 e
xi

st
in

g 
o

n
e 

(7
5

0
 s

ea
ts

).
•

Sm
al

le
r 

st
ag

e 
th

an
 e

xi
st

in
g 

o
n

e.
•

P
o

o
l i

s 
n

o
t 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 in

 p
ro

gr
am

.
•

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
at

h
le

ti
c 

st
ad

iu
m

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
.

•
A

th
le

ti
c 

St
ad

iu
m

 r
el

o
ca

te
d

 c
lo

se
r 

to
 a

b
u

tt
in

g 
p

ro
p

er
ti

es
.

•
A

ll 
at

h
le

ti
c 

fi
el

d
s 

an
d

 t
en

n
is

 c
o

u
rt

s 
re

q
u

ir
e 

re
lo

ca
ti

o
n

 (
ex

ce
p

t 
fo

r 
n

o
rt

h
ea

st
 c

o
rn

er
 a

d
ja

ce
n

t 
to

 E
ls

b
re

e 
St

re
et

).

O
P

T
IO

N
 2

A
N

E
W

 C
O

N
S
T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

N
ew

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

P
er

fo
rm

in
g

A
rt

s

A
th

le
tic

F
oo

tb
al

l

S
ta

di
um P

ra
ct

ic
e

T
ur

fF
ie

ld

B
as

eb
al

l

T
en

ni
s

C
ou

rt
s

P
ar

ki
ngE

nt
ry

P
la

za

S
oc

ce
r

Lo
ad

in
g/

R
ec

ei
vi

ng

P
ar

ki
ng

S
of

tb
al

l

S
of

tb
al

l

B
us

 D
ro

p

V
eh

ic
le

D
ro

p

R
ay

 S
tr

ee
t

WeetamoeStreet

President Ave

StanleyStreet

Langley Street

N
or

th
 A

rr
ow

Ja
m

es
 T

an
se

y

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

S
ch

oo
l

S
pe

nc
er

 B
or

de
n

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

S
ch

oo
l

D
ris

co
ll

A
re

na
P

ar
ki

ng

B
as

eb
al

l

S
oc

ce
r



H
I

G
H

 
S

C
H

O
O

L

BMC D
U

R
F

E
E

P
ro

s:
•

M
o

st
 c

o
st

-e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 o

p
ti

o
n

 (
si

m
ila

r 
to

 O
p

ti
o

n
 1

C
).

 
•

Ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 o

f 
th

e 
b

u
ild

in
g 

la
yo

u
t 

an
d

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 

(a
ll 

p
ro

gr
am

 c
o

n
ta

in
ed

 w
it

h
in

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
b

u
ild

in
g)

.
•

C
u

rb
 A

p
p

ea
l: 

N
ew

 b
u

ild
in

g 
d

ir
ec

tl
y 

o
ff

 E
ls

b
re

e 
St

re
et

.
•

Ex
is

ti
n

g 
fo

o
tb

al
l s

ta
d

iu
m

 lo
ca

ti
o

n
 m

ai
n

ta
in

ed
.

•
P

ar
ki

n
g 

w
el

l d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 a

m
o

n
g 

b
u

ild
in

g 
an

d
 

at
h

le
ti

c 
fi

el
d

s.
•

Le
as

t 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 d
is

ru
p

ti
o

n
 r

es
u

lt
in

g 
fr

o
m

 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 p
ro

je
ct

.
•

B
u

ild
in

g 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

 o
n

 s
it

e 
re

su
lt

s 
in

 a
n

 o
p

en
 

ca
m

p
u

s 
w

it
h

 c
le

ar
 o

ve
rs

ig
h

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
st

re
et

 a
n

d
 

in
te

rn
al

ly
.

•
Id

ea
l b

u
s,

 p
ar

en
t 

an
d

 f
ac

u
lt

y 
si

te
 c

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

.
•

N
o

 b
u

ild
in

g 
o

ve
rl

ap
 (

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 b
u

ild
in

g 
an

d
 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
b

u
ild

in
g)

.
•

V
ie

w
s 

ac
ro

ss
 s

it
e 

an
d

 e
xi

st
in

g 
st

ad
iu

m
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
n

ew
 c

o
re

 a
ca

d
em

ic
 b

u
ild

in
g 

an
d

 m
ai

n
 c

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 
at

ri
u

m
.

•
Le

ss
si

te
re

la
te

d
su

b
-s

u
rf

ac
e 

u
n

kn
o

w
n

s.

C
o

n
s:

•
Sm

al
le

r 
au

d
it

o
ri

u
m

 t
h

an
 e

xi
st

in
g 

o
n

e 
(7

5
0

 s
ea

ts
).

•
Sm

al
le

r 
st

ag
e 

th
an

 e
xi

st
in

g 
o

n
e.

•
P

o
o

l i
s 

n
o

t 
in

cl
u

d
ed

 in
 p

ro
gr

am
.

O
P

T
IO

N
 2

B
N

E
W

 C
O

N
S
T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 &

 P
R

E
-F

A
B

N
ew

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

P
er

fo
rm

in
g

A
rt

s

A
th

le
tic

s

F
oo

tb
al

l

S
ta

di
um

P
ra

ct
ic

e

T
ur

fF
ie

ld

B
as

eb
al

l

T
en

ni
s

C
ou

rt
s

P
ar

ki
ng

E
nt

ry

P
la

za

S
oc

ce
r

Lo
ad

in
g/

R
ec

ei
vi

ng

P
ar

ki
ng

S
of

tb
al

l

S
of

tb
al

l

B
us

 D
ro

p

V
eh

ic
le

D
ro

p

R
ay

 S
tr

ee
t

WeetamoeStreet

President Ave

StanleyStreet

Langley Street

N
or

th
 A

rr
ow

Ja
m

es
 T

an
se

y

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

S
ch

oo
l

S
pe

nc
er

 B
or

de
n

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

S
ch

oo
l

D
ris

co
ll

A
re

na
P

ar
ki

ng

B
as

eb
al

l

P
ar

ki
ng

O
ut

do
or

D
in

in
g

O
ut

do
or

Le
ar

ni
ng



H
I

G
H

 
S

C
H

O
O

L

BMC D
U

R
F

E
E

N
ex

t S
te

ps

S
T

E
P

 
1

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

D
es

ig
n

 P
ro

gr
am

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 P

ro
gr

am
&

 V
is

io
n

in
g

2
0

A
p

r
i
l

2
0

1
7

In
it

ia
l S

p
ac

e
Su

m
m

ar
y

Ev
al

u
at

io
n

 o
f

Ex
is

ti
n

g 
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s

Ev
al

u
at

io
n

 o
f

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

es

S
T

E
P

 
2

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

 S
ch

e
m

at
ic

 S
tu

d
y

Fi
n

al
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
P

ro
gr

am

2
9

J
u

n
e

2
0

1
7

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

P
re

fe
rr

ed
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n

Fi
n

al
 E

va
lu

at
io

n
 o

f
Ex

is
ti

n
g 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

(T
ra

ff
ic

/G
eo

-t
ec

h
/S

o
ils

, U
ti

lit
ie

s,
 e

tc
.)

 

Fi
n

al
 E

va
lu

at
io

n
 o

f
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

S
T

E
P

 
3

Sc
h

em
at

ic
 D

es
ig

n
 S

u
b

m
it

ta
l

Fi
n

al
 D

es
ig

n
 

P
ro

gr
am

0
3

J
a

n
u

a
r
y

2
0

1
8

Si
te

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

s
(G

eo
-t

ec
h

/S
o

ils
, U

ti
lit

ie
s,

 
Tr

af
fi

c,
 e

tc
.)

 

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
en

t 
C

o
st

 
Es

ti
m

at
es

D
ev

el
o

p
 E

xt
er

io
r 

D
es

ig
n

 A
es

th
et

ic

M
SB

A
 B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 M
tg

.
M

SB
A

 B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 M

tg
.

M
SB

A
 S

ta
ff

 R
ev

ie
w



H
I

G
H

 
S

C
H

O
O

L

BMC D
U

R
F

E
E

P
re

fe
rr

ed
 S

ch
em

at
ic

 R
ep

or
t S

ub
m

is
si

on

W
h

a
t
 w

il
l

t
h

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it

t
e
e
 

b
e
 a

s
k

e
d

 t
o

 A
p
p
r

o
v

e
?

N
E
X

T
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E
E
 M

E
E
T

IN
G

: 
T

H
U

R
, 

J
U

N
E
 1

5
, 

2
0

1
7

1.
T
h
e
 P

re
fe

rr
e
d

 S
ch

e
m

a
ti
c 

R
e
p

o
rt

 (
P

S
R

) 
su

b
m

is
si

o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

M
a
ss

a
ch

u
se

tt
s 

S
ch

o
o

l B
u
ild

in
g

 A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
M

S
B
A

) 
in

 

a
n
ti
ci

p
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 b

o
a
rd

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

n
 A

u
g

u
st

2
3
rd

.

2
.

A
si

n
g

le
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

e
va

lu
a
ti
o

n
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 

n
e
xt

 p
h
a
se

 o
f 
d

e
si

g
n
 -

S
ch

e
m

a
ti
c 

D
e
si

g
n
 (
M

o
d

u
le

 4
).
 

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

 S
ch

e
m

a
ti
c 

S
u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 U

p
d

a
te

 –
R

e
vi

e
w

 o
f 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 o

p
ti
o

n
s 

&
 p

ro
ce

ss
.

R
e
vi

e
w

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
o

st
s 

fo
r 

e
a
ch

 o
p

ti
o

n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
cl

u
d

e
s 

th
e
 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

co
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 c

o
st

 e
st

im
a
te

s.



 
 

   
 

 

NEW DURFEE HIGH SCHOOL PROJECT 
 

 

Please join the 
 
City of Fall River, Fall River Public Schools and 

the Durfee School Building Committee for 

  
PUBLIC FORUM #2 

Thursday, June 15, 2017 

6:30 PM – 8:00 PM 

Durfee High School Auditorium 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

We need your input as we narrow the site layout 
options to those that are the most viable and 
appropriate in size and location on the site. The 
ultimate goal is to arrive at an appropriate 
comprehensive high school design that will 
provide a positive, 21st century learning 
environment for our students. 
 
The Durfee High School Project will benefit the 
entire Fall River Community by improving and 
increasing educational opportunities for our 
students. 

Agenda: 
Siting/Site Layout Options 

Preferred Options 
Preferred Schematic Report 

Project Schedule Update 
 

lstapleton
Rectangle



B
M
C
 D
u
rf
e
e
 H
ig
h
 S
ch
o
o
l ‐
 F
al
l R

iv
e
r,
 M

A

To
ta
l P
ro
je
ct
 B
u
d
ge
t 
St
at
u
s 
R
e
p
o
rt

P
ro
P
ay
 C
o
d
e

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n

 T
o
ta
l P
ro
je
ct
 B
u
d
ge
t 

 A
u
th
o
ri
ze
d
 C
h
an

ge
s 

 R
e
vi
se
d
 T
o
ta
l B

u
d
ge
t 

 T
o
ta
l  
   
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
d
  

%
 C
m
td
 t
o
 D
at
e

A
ct
u
al
 S
p
e
n
t 
to
 

D
at
e

%
 S
p
e
n
t 
to
 D
at
e

B
al
an

ce
 T
o
 S
p
e
n
d

 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

FE
A
SI
B
IL
IT
Y
 S
TU

D
Y
 A
G
R
EE
M
EN

T

0
0
0
1
‐0
0
0
0

O
P
M
 F
e
as
ib
ili
ty
 S
tu
d
y/
Sc
h
e
m
at
ic
 D
e
si
gn

2
8
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

5
0
,5
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

3
3
0
,5
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

3
3
0
,5
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   

1
0
0
%

2
1
1
,2
5
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
  

6
4
%

1
1
9
,2
5
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

 *
FS
A
 1
, 2

 

0
0
0
2
‐0
0
0
0

A
&
E 
Fe
as
ib
ili
ty
 S
tu
d
y/
Sc
h
e
m
at
ic
 D
e
si
gn

5
7
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

9
9
,5
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

6
6
9
,5
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

6
6
9
,5
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   

1
0
0
%

3
2
7
,1
6
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
  

4
9
%

3
4
2
,3
4
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

 *
FS
A
 1
, 2

 

0
0
0
3
‐0
0
0
0

En
vi
ro
n
m
e
n
ta
l &

 S
it
e
 

1
2
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

(1
2
0
,0
0
0
)

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

 *
FS
A
 1
, 2

 

0
0
0
4
‐0
0
0
0

O
th
e
r

3
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

(3
0
,0
0
0
)

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

*F
SA

 2

SU
B
‐T
O
TA

L
1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
  

1
0
0
%

5
3
8
,4
1
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
  

5
4
%

4
6
1
,5
9
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

A
D
M
IN
IS
TR

A
TI
O
N

0
1
0
1
‐0
0
0
0

Le
ga
l F
e
e
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

O
w
n
e
r'
s 
P
ro
je
ct
 M

an
ag
e
r

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

0
1
0
2
‐0
4
0
0

D
e
si
gn

 D
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
1
0
2
‐0
5
0
0

C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
 D
o
cu
m
e
n
ts

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
1
0
2
‐0
6
0
0

B
id
d
in
g

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
1
0
2
‐0
7
0
0

C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
 A
d
m
in
is
tr
at
io
n

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
1
0
2
‐0
8
0
0

C
lo
se
o
u
t

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
1
0
2
‐0
9
0
0

Ex
tr
a 
Se
rv
ic
e
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
1
0
2
‐1
0
0
0

R
e
im

b
u
rs
ab

le
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
2
0
1
‐1
1
0
0

C
o
st
 E
st
im

at
e
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
1
0
3
‐0
0
0
0

A
d
ve
rt
is
in
g 
&
 P
ri
n
ti
n
g

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

0
1
0
4
‐0
0
0
0

P
e
rm

it
ti
n
g

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

0
1
0
5
‐0
0
0
0

O
w
n
e
r'
s 
In
su
ra
n
ce

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

0
1
9
9
‐0
0
0
0

O
th
e
r 
A
d
m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
 C
o
st
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

SU
B
‐T
O
TA

L
‐

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

A
&
E

A
/E
 B
as
ic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

0
2
0
1
‐0
4
0
0

D
e
si
gn

 D
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
2
0
1
‐0
5
0
0

C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
 D
o
cu
m
e
n
ts

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
2
0
1
‐0
6
0
0

B
id
d
in
g 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
2
0
1
‐0
7
0
0

C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
 A
d
m
in
is
tr
at
io
n

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
2
0
1
‐0
8
0
0

C
lo
se
o
u
t

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
2
0
1
‐9
9
0
0

O
th
e
r 
B
as
ic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

Ex
tr
a/
R
e
im

b
u
rs
ab

le
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

0
2
0
3
‐9
9
0
0

O
th
e
r 
R
e
im

b
u
rs
ab

le
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
2
0
4
‐0
2
0
0

H
az
M
at
 (
in
cl
. m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g)

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
2
0
4
‐0
3
0
0

G
e
o
te
ch
n
ic
al
/G

e
o
‐E
n
vi
ro
n
m
e
n
ta
l

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
2
0
4
‐0
4
0
0

Si
te
 S
u
rv
e
y 
&
 S
it
e
 R
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
2
0
4
‐0
5
0
0

W
e
tl
an

d
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
2
0
4
‐1
2
0
0

Tr
af
fi
c 
St
u
d
ie
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

SU
B
‐T
O
TA

L
‐

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

SI
TE

 A
C
Q
U
IS
IT
IO
N

0
3
0
1
‐0
0
0
0

La
n
d
/B
ld
g.
 P
u
rc
h
as
e
/A

ss
o
ci
at
e
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

SU
B
‐T
O
TA

L
‐

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

M
ay
 3
1
, 2
0
1
7

  P
ag

e 
1 

of
 2



B
M
C
 D
u
rf
e
e
 H
ig
h
 S
ch
o
o
l ‐
 F
al
l R

iv
e
r,
 M

A

To
ta
l P
ro
je
ct
 B
u
d
ge
t 
St
at
u
s 
R
e
p
o
rt

P
ro
P
ay
 C
o
d
e

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n

 T
o
ta
l P
ro
je
ct
 B
u
d
ge
t 

 A
u
th
o
ri
ze
d
 C
h
an

ge
s 

 R
e
vi
se
d
 T
o
ta
l B

u
d
ge
t 

 T
o
ta
l  
   
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
d
  

%
 C
m
td
 t
o
 D
at
e

A
ct
u
al
 S
p
e
n
t 
to
 

D
at
e

%
 S
p
e
n
t 
to
 D
at
e

B
al
an

ce
 T
o
 S
p
e
n
d

 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

M
ay
 3
1
, 2
0
1
7

P
R
E 
C
O
N
ST
R
U
C
TI
O
N
 C
O
ST
S

0
5
0
1
‐0
0
0
0

C
M
R
 P
re
‐C
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

SU
B
‐T
O
TA

L
‐

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

C
O
N
ST
R
U
C
TI
O
N
 C
O
ST
S

0
5
0
2
‐0
0
0
1

C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
 B
u
d
ge
t

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

0
5
0
8
‐0
0
0
0

C
h
an

ge
 O
rd
e
rs

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

SU
B
‐T
O
TA

L
‐

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

A
LT
ER

N
A
TE
S

0
5
0
6
‐0
0
0
0

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

SU
B
‐T
O
TA

L
‐

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#R
EF
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

O
TH

ER
 P
R
O
JE
C
T 
C
O
ST
S

0
5
0
7
‐0
0
0
0

C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
 C
o
n
ti
n
ge
n
cy

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

M
is
ce
lla
n
e
o
u
s 
P
ro
je
ct
 C
o
st
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

0
6
0
1
‐0
0
0
0

U
ti
lit
y 
C
o
m
p
an

y 
Fe
e
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
6
0
2
‐0
0
0
0

Te
st
in
g 
Se
rv
ic
e
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
6
9
9
‐0
0
0
0

O
th
e
r 
P
ro
je
ct
 C
o
st
s

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

Fu
rn
is
h
in
gs
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

0
7
0
1
‐0
0
0
0

Fu
rn
is
h
in
gs

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
7
0
2
‐0
0
0
0

Eq
u
ip
m
e
n
t

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
7
0
3
‐0
0
0
0

Te
ch
n
o
lo
gy
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

0
8
0
1
‐0
0
0
0

O
w
n
e
r'
s 
C
o
n
ti
n
ge
n
cy

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

SU
B
‐T
O
TA

L
‐

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

#D
IV
/0
!

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

TO
TA

L 
P
R
O
JE
C
T 
B
U
D
G
ET

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
  

1
0
0
%

5
3
8
,4
1
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
  

5
4
%

4
6
1
,5
9
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

FU
N
D
IN
G
 S
O
U
R
C
ES

M
ax
 w
/ 
C
o
n
ti
n
g.

M
ax
 w
/o
 C
o
n
ti
n
g.

M
ax
im

u
m
 S
ta
te
 S
h
ar
e

7
9
5
,8
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

7
9
5
,8
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

P
ro
je
ct

B
as
is
 o
f 
To

ta
l

R
ei
m
b
u
rs
em

en
t

Lo
ca
l S
h
ar
e
 *

2
0
4
,2
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

2
0
4
,2
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

B
u
d
ge
t

Fa
ci
lit
ie
s 
G
ra
n
t

R
at
e

SU
B
‐T
O
TA

L
1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
  

7
9
.5
8
%

C
O
N
ST
R
. C

O
ST
 E
ST
IM

A
TE
S

D
at
e

Es
ti
m
at
o
r

A
m
o
u
n
t

 S
F 

C
o
st
 P
e
r 
SF

D
e
si
gn
e
r 
FS
 C
o
st
 E
st
im

at
e
 

#D
IV
/0
!

D
e
si
gn
e
r 
SD

 C
o
st
 E
st
im

at
e
 

#D
IV
/0
!

C
M
 S
D
 C
o
st
 E
st
im

at
e
 

#D
IV
/0
!

Fe
as
ib
ili
ty
 S
tu
dy

 A
gr
ee
m
en

t B
ud

ge
t T

ra
ns
fe
rs
:

FS
A
 B
R
R
0
1

7
/7
/2
0
1
6

FS
A
 B
R
R
0
2

2
/3
/2
0
1
7

Pr
oj
ec
t F

un
di
ng

 A
gr
ee
m
en

t B
ud

ge
t T

ra
ns
fe
rs
:

C
o
n
ti
n
ge
n
ci
es

Sc
o
p
e 
It
em

s 
Ex
cl
u
d
ed

Tr
an
sf
er
 $
5
0
,0
0
0
 f
ro
m
 E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en

ta
l &

 S
it
e 
to
 O
P
M
 F
ea
si
b
ili
ty
 S
tu
d
y/
Sc
h
em

at
ic
 D
es
ig
n
; t
ra
n
sf
er
 $
2
0
,0
0
0
 f
ro
m
 A
/E
 F
ea
si
b
ili
ty
 S
tu
d
y/
Sc
h
em

at
ic
 D
es
ig
n
 

to
 O
P
M
  F
ea
si
b
ili
ty
 S
tu
d
y/
Sc
h
em

at
ic
 D
es
ig
n
.  
A
P
P
R
O
V
ED

 b
y 
M
SB

A
 1
1
/8
/1
6

Tr
an
sf
er
 $
7
0
,0
0
0
 f
ro
m
 E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en

ta
l &

 S
it
e,
 t
ra
n
sf
er
 $
3
0
,0
0
0
 f
ro
m
 O
th
er
 , 
an
d
 t
ra
n
sf
er
 $
1
9
,5
0
0
 f
ro
m
 O
P
M
 F
ea
si
b
ili
ty
 S
tu
d
y/
Sc
h
em

at
ic
 D
es
ig
n
 t
o
 t
o
 

A
/E
 F
ea
si
b
ili
ty
 S
tu
d
y/
Sc
h
em

at
ic
  D
es
ig
n
 t
o
 f
u
lf
ill
 A
/E
 C
o
n
tr
ac
t 
R
eq

u
ir
em

en
ts
.  
C
ir
cu
la
te
d
 f
o
r 
Si
gn
at
u
re
s

  P
ag

e 
2 

of
 2


